
 

 

Agenda 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Central Texas Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC) 

 

Central Texas Council of Governments Building 

2180 North Main Street, Belton, TX 76513 

Aug 31st, 2017, 9:30 am 

 

Agenda 

 

 

I. Call to Order 

 

II. Public Comments 

 

III. Staff Update 

 

IV. Action Item:  Discussion and Approval of May 4, 2017 Meeting Minutes 

 

V. Action Item: Member appointments and election of officers  

 

VI. Action Item:  Discussion of FY 2018/2019 SWAC goals and priorities, Approve Draft 

Funding Plan, and Draft of CTCOG Application to Texas Commission on Environmental 

Quality (TCEQ) 

 

VII. Action Item: Set date of Public Meeting for Draft Funding Plan 

 

VIII. Action Item:  Publishing Call for Applications for Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) 

events 

 

IX. Action Item: Amend By-Laws – meeting schedule 

 

X. Member Comments/Discussion 

 

XI. Set Next Meeting Date and Agenda Items 

 

XII. Adjournment 

 



 

 

Minutes 



 

 SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Thursday, May 4, 2017 

10:00 AM 
 

Central Texas Council of Governments (CTCOG) 
2180 North Main Street 

Belton, TX 76513 
Voting Members Present 

Noel Watson—City of Coppers Cove   Duane Herrera—Bell County 
Paul Daugereau—Waste Management   Mark Hyde—City of Harker Heights 
Lisa Sebek—City of Temple    Johnny Wagner—Hamilton County 
Peter DiLillo—City of Killeen    Richard Watkins—Milam County 
Bill Parry—City of Gatesville     
 
 

Others Present 

 Kara Escajeda—City of Nolanville   Dawn Orange—City of Temple  

 Jason Lang—Waste Management   Jason Deckman--CTCOG 

 Chuck Rivette—Waste Management   Jennifer Lawyer--CTCOG 

James (Bubba) Smith—Waste Management    
  

I.    WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS: 

 Peter DiLillo called the meeting to order at about 10:00. 

 Attendees introduced themselves. 
 

II.   PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

 There were no public comments. 
 

III. ACTION ITEM—DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM AUGUST 30, 2017 MEETING: 

 There were no comments on the minutes. 

 Mark Hyde made a motion to approve the minutes. Paul Daugereau seconded the motion. The 
motion passed. 

 
IV. ACTION ITEM—DISCUSSION OF FY 2017 HHW EVENTS, PUBLIC ACCESS TIMES, AND APPROVAL OF   

REMAINING HHW BUDGET: 

 Jennifer stated that the remaining budget for HHW was $10,547 after payments for the FY 2017 

HHW events. 



Page 2 of 3 
SWAC Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2017 

 Jennifer announced that Lometa had opted to wait and hold their HHW event in FY 2018. 

 SWAC agreed collection and disposal of televisions was a problem. 

 Jennifer stated that as long as funds are used within the HHW category (including education), the 

only thing that needs to be updated is the Implementation Project Summary for the TCEQ. If funds 

are moved to another category (recycling, for example) the Funding Plan will have to be changed 

and that would require a public notice, public meeting, etc. The fiscal year ends August 31, 2017, 

and the funds will not roll over. 

 Bill Parry made a motion to take 10% of the remaining funds and purchase an educational brochure 

type handout and split the remainder between Copperas Cove and Gatesville. Noel Watson 

seconded the motion. The motion passed.  (Stopped at 29 min and 58 sec) 

 

V.   PRESENTATION FROM WASTE MANAGEMENT REGARDING UPDATES TO TEMPLE LANDFILL EXPANSION 

PERMIT: 

 

VI. ACTION ITEM: TEMPLE LANDFILL EXPANSION PERMIT CONFORMANCE/NON-CONFORMANCE TO THE 

REGIONAL SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN: 

 

VII. DISCUSSION OF RE-TRAC CONNECT AND HHW DATA MANAGEMENT: 
 

 VIII. MEMBER COMMENTS/DISCUSSION: 
 

IX. SET NEXT MEETING DATE AND AGENDA ITEMS: 

  
 

X. ADJOURNMENT: 

  
  
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________________  ___________________________________ 
Zoe Rascoe, SWAC Chair    Cheryl Maxwell, CTCOG Planning Director 



Page 3 of 3 
SWAC Meeting Minutes 
May 4, 2017 

 

 

 

*HHW dates changed later to Copperas Cove—February 18, 2017; Gatesville—March 4, 2017, and 

Nolanville—March 18, 2017. 



 

 

SWAC 

Members 



Duane Herrera 254‐933‐5275 duane.herrera@co.bell.tx.us Bell County

Daren Moore 254‐223‐1001 dmcoryellcounty@gmail.com Coryell County

Johnny Wagner 254‐386‐8542 jwagner@hamiltoncountytx.org Hamilton County

Richard Watkins 254‐593‐3171 mcpct1@farm‐market.net Milam County

Stan Weik 325‐372‐5144 weiks@att.net San Saba County

Vacant Lampasas County

Vacant Mills County

Bryan Neaves 254‐933‐5275 bryan.neaves@co.bell.tx.us Bell County Alternate

Jeremy Allamon 254‐933‐5823 jallamon@beltontexas.gov City of Belton

Noel Watson 254‐547‐4242 nwatson@copperascovetx.gov City of Copperas Cove

Bill Parry 254‐865‐8951 william.parry@ci.gatesville.tx.us City of Gatesville

Mark Hyde 254‐953‐5649 mhyde@ci.harker‐heights.tx.us City of Harker Heights

Peter DiLillo 254‐554‐7572 pdilillo@killeentexas.gov City of Killeen

Lisa Sebek 254‐298‐5180 lsebek@templetx.gov City of Temple

Paul Daugereau 512‐272‐6226 pdaugere@wm.com Solid Waste Industry Representative

Zoe Rascoe 254‐913‐1013 trascoe@hot.rr.com Private Sector/Citizen Representative

Regina Corley 254‐207‐2300 corleyr@wilsonart.com Private Sector/Business Representative

Velia Key 254‐547‐4242 srhoads@copperascovetx.gov Ex‐Officio‐‐City of Copperas Cove

Jeanie Harrison 254‐372‐4572 harrisonx2@hughes.net Ex‐Officio‐‐Hamilton County Recycling

Scott Perry 254‐434‐1098 scotchperry@yahoo.com Ex‐Officio‐‐City of Hico

David McGinnis 254‐526‐5541 smvacuumandwaste@hot.rr.com Ex‐Officio‐‐S&M Vacuum and Waste, LTD‐‐Killeen

Nicole Torralva 254‐298‐5621 ntorralva@ci.temple.tx.us Ex‐Officio‐‐City of Temple

Dawn Orange 254‐298‐5722 dorange@templetx.gov Ex‐Officio‐‐City of Temple

Tanya Gray 254‐493‐4000 tanya@keeptemplebeautiful.org Ex‐Officio‐‐Keep Temple Beautiful

Trey Buzbee 254‐761‐3168 tbuzbee@brazos.org Ex‐Officio‐‐Brazos River Authority

Ryan Polster 254‐386‐8116 citysecretary@ci.hamilton.tx.us Ex‐Officio‐‐City of Hamilton

Jimmy Brown 469‐951‐9970 environmentalresourcesllc@gmail.com Ex‐Officio‐‐Environmental Resources

Jeff Browning 254‐743‐0553 jbrowning07@gmail.com Ex‐Officio‐‐City of Temple

Elvi Yzaguirre 512‐239‐6700 eyzaguir@tceq.texas.gov Ex‐Officio‐‐TCEQ

SWAC Members FY 2018‐19



 

 

Contract and 

Funding Plan 

 

 

















 

 

Application 









 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING APPLICATION TO 
THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

FOR CTCOG REGIONAL SOLID WASTE GRANTS PROGRAM  
Resolution #### 

 
WHEREAS, the Central Texas Council of Governments (CTCOG), a Regional Planning 
Commission designated by the Office of the Governor, State of Texas, under the 
provisions of Article 1011mm, V.A.C.S., with jurisdictional lines encompassing the 
counties of Bell, Coryell, Hamilton, Lampasas, Milam, Mills and San Saba, is desirous of 
submitting a regional grant application for Solid Waste Grant funds through the Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ), and 

WHEREAS, the governing body of the Central Texas Council of Governments finds that 
all activities and related expenses included in this application will serve to implement the 
goals, objectives, and recommendations of the regional solid waste management plan and 
the state solid waste management plan, and 

WHEREAS, the Central Texas Council of Governments will comply with all applicable 
state and local laws and regulations pertaining to the use of state funds, including laws 
concerning the procurement of goods and services, competitive purchasing requirements 
and financial and program reporting requirements, and  

 
WHEREAS, grant funds will be used only for the purposes for which they are provided.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the CTCOG REGIONAL SOLID WASTE 
GRANTS PROGRAM for fiscal years 2018-2019 has been approved by the Executive 
Committee for submission to TCEQ and is recommended for funding.  

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 28th day of September, 2017 by the Central Texas 
Council of Governments Executive Committee. 

 
 
__________________________________________ 
The Honorable Dickie Clary, President 
 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
The Honorable Byron Theodosis, Secretary/Treasurer 

































 

 

Call for 

Applications 

 



Call for Applications: 

Household Hazardous Waste Events – Fiscal Year 2018 

The Central Texas Council of Governments (CTCOG) Solid Waste Advisory Committee (SWAC) is requesting 

applications from cities or counties interested in hosting a Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) collection 

event during FY 2018.  Fiscal Year 2018 begins on September 1, 2017. 

This application is due back to CTCOG staff no later than DATE TBD (deadline depends on meeting date). 

The SWAC will vote to select events at their next meeting, tentatively scheduled for November 16, 2017 at 

9:30 at the CTCOG offices. Be prepared to have a representative present to answer questions regarding 

your site or your ability to contribute funds or labor. Note that on page three of the application form is a 

selection of background information and lessons learned. 

Please contact Jason Deckman if you have any questions: (254)-770-2376 or jason.deckman@ctcog.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



 
 

HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE EVENT 
Application for FY 2018 

 

Applications are due to CTCOG by 5 P.M. on DATE TBD. You may send them via email to 
jason.deckman@ctcog.org, via fax to (254) 770-2360, or mail a hard copy to: 
 
CTCOG, Attn: Solid Waste Coordinator 
P.O. Box 729 
Belton, Texas 76513 
 
CTCOG is located at 2180 North Main Street in Belton, Texas. For directions, please call 
(254) 770-2200. Applicants should attend the Date TBD meeting of the Central Texas 
Council of Governments Solid Waste Advisory Committee, in order to present a tentative 
plan for the event, explain why their location should be selected, and to answer questions 
from the committee. The meeting will be at 9:30 and be held at the CTCOG offices.  The 
Solid Waste Committee will select the event locations based on the cases presented and 
funding levels. 
 

1. Has your City/County ever held a Household Hazardous Waste Event?   

☐ Yes  ☐ No  

 If so, when? (MM/YYYY) ________________________________________________ 

 If known, how many people attended? ____________________________________ 

 

2. If selected to host an event, how many people do you anticipate will attend?  Based on 

what criteria? 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

3. List 3 dates between September 1, 2017 and August 31, 2018 when the event might take 

place, keeping in mind that a minimum 45 day advance notice to TCEQ is required. 

a. _____________________   b._____________________ c._______________________ 

 

4. Please give the physical address of the event and describe the facility (how big it is, how 

much land surrounds it, how accessible to main highways, etc.) where the event would be 

held. 

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 



___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 

5. Each county/city provides the site and volunteers necessary to operate the event. In 

addition, please indicate the amount of funding that your city or county is willing to 

contribute towards the cost of the event. CTCOG will also contribute towards the cost of the 

event. 

Funding contribution: 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

(Example, dollar amounts for advertising, tire collection, electronics recycling, etc) 

 

6. Please elaborate on specific reasons why the collection event should be held in your 

city/county. Attach additional pages as needed. 

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Information from past events: 

 



 Past CTCOG contribution towards cost:   $20,000 - $25,000 

 Past turnout for urban area (Killeen or Temple):  300-400+ cars 

 Past turnout for rural area (Hamilton or Gatesville):  120-300+ cars 

 Past cost for urban events:     $30,000 - $50,000+ 

 Past cost for rural events:     $20,000 - $50,000+ 

 Cost for tire trailer provided by contractor:   $1900 (approximate) 

 Cost for electronics vendor on site -     Depends on vendor / contract 

  Newspaper advertising – depends on local paper classified ad rates. Ads are most effective in the 

community where the event takes place, less so with increasing distance. (In other words, an ad in 

the San Saba paper is unlikely to result in anyone from San Saba attending an event in Cameron). 

Check with your local paper for cost of ads based on size, graphics and color. 

 

Most effective advertising:  local newspaper, water bill inserts, church announcements, community 

billboards. 

 

 

Lessons learned: 

 

 One way traffic works best – having people enter and exit through a single entry point can cause 

traffic jams, confusion to the drivers, and may increase the risk of a car striking a pedestrian 

 Combined events (HHW in conjunction with a city-wide clean-up) may increase confusion to the 

public regarding acceptable items for disposal, times, or locations. Staff or volunteers will have to 

identify the visitor’s purpose and direct them to the correct location. It may require traffic to cross 

paths or have to merge back in line, and can make data collection difficult if people are being 

counted that aren’t bringing hazardous waste.  However, it can work given the appropriate 

location.  If you are considering this, please contact your solid waste coordinator for more 

information. 

 Maximize the use of volunteers to help direct traffic, take surveys, hand out promotional items, 

unload tires, etc. The quicker a car can be received, surveyed, unloaded and moved out, the 

happier your residents are going to be. Traffic won’t back up, tempers won’t flare, and you just 

have a better flow of cars through the site. 

 Brief the volunteers and paid employees well before the scheduled opening time. That helps 

everyone understand how cars will be directed to flow through the site, and what their part will be. 

Also, you can brief them on the safety hazards involved with moving vehicles, hazardous chemicals, 

heat exhaustion, etc. 

 Expect people to begin arriving at the event at least one hour prior to the posted start time, 

especially in the rural areas. 

 Volunteers or paid staff are a necessity!!!! 

 Don’t forget: access to bathrooms is needed. 

 



 

 

By-Laws 

 



 
SOLID WASTE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

BYLAWS 

ARTICLE I 
NAME OF COMMITTEE 

The name of this Advisory Committee shall be the Central Texas Council of Governments Solid 

Waste Advisory Committee. 

ARTICLE II 
OBJECTIVE 

Section 1 

The creation of the Advisory Committee is authorized by the Central Texas Council of 

Governments, under Section 391.005, Vernon’s Texas Codes Annotated and Article II of the 

Articles of Association. 

Section 2 

The Advisory Committee shall advise the Central Texas Council of Governments’ Executive 

Committee during the planning and implementation of the Central Texas Regional Solid Waste 

Management Plan as outlined in Subchapter O, Section 7, of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, Article 

4477-7, and Vernon’s Texas Civil Statutes, as amended.  The purpose of the plan is to guide the 

orderly development and implementation of solid waste facilities and disposal methods 

according to local, state, and federal regulations. 

ARTICLE III 
MEMBERSHIP 

Section 1 

a. Advisory Committee membership shall consist of one member from each county of the 

Central Texas Council of Governments, and one member from each municipality with a 



Page 2 of 6 
SWAC Bylaws 
Revised August 2016 

population in excess of 10,000 residents as of latest census.  These counties- Bell, Coryell, 

Hamilton, Lampasas, Milam, Mills, and San Saba; and these municipalities- Belton, 

Copperas Cove, Gatesville, Harker Heights, Killeen, and Temple are eligible.  Ex-officio 

membership is encouraged to be requested by private operators, citizen groups, and 

interested individuals. 

b. The Advisory Committee shall be made up of representatives from the following: 

1. Appointees of Counties and Qualifying Municipalities 

2. One Solid Waste Industry Representative 

3. One Private Sector / Business Representative 

4. One Citizen Representative 

5. Central Texas Council of Governments’ Staff 

6. The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

7. Ex-Officio Members 

c. Voting members of the Advisory Committee shall be #1-4 above. 

Members unable to attend meetings are encouraged to send an informed, member-

assigned alternate to assist in information exchange and coordination activities.  

However, only appointed members of counties and municipalities will have full voting 

privileges in addition to the one citizen/private sector representative and one solid waste 

industry representative. 

Section 2 

a. County representatives will be appointed by their elected County Judge, and Municipal 

representatives will be appointed by the City Mayor.  Both appointments shall be in 

writing. There are no term limits for county and municipal representatives; however, 

confirmation of their continuing status as representatives shall be provided in writing at 

the beginning of each biennium. 



Page 3 of 6 
SWAC Bylaws 
Revised August 2016 

b. Solid Waste Industry and Citizen representatives will be selected by the Advisory 

Committee.  

c. Ex-officio membership shall be requested in writing to the Advisory Committee in care 

of the CTCOG staff coordinator. 

d. Ex-officio members, Solid Waste Industry, Private Sector, and Citizen Representatives 

will be approved by a majority vote of the Advisory Committee. Terms will be two years 

beginning on the date of the vote.  

e. Ex-officio membership may be requested in writing and approved by the Advisory 

Committee at any time during the biennium. 

Section 3 

There shall be no discrimination in any respect in selection of members or any activity of the 

Advisory Committee due to gender, age, race, religion, disability, or political creed. 

ARTICLE IV 
OFFICERS/STAFF 

Section 1 

The officers of the Solid Waste Advisory Committee shall be a chair and two vice chairs who shall 

be elected by the full Advisory Committee. 

a) Officer Elections shall be held during the first meeting after the beginning of each 

biennium. 

b) Officers will serve a two-year term beginning on the day of the vote. 

c) Subsequent officer elections will be held as required to fill any unexpired terms.  

d) An officer shall not hold the same office for more than two consecutive terms. 

  



Page 4 of 6 
SWAC Bylaws 
Revised August 2016 

Section 2 

The chair shall preside at all meetings of the Advisory Committee.  The chair and/or staff 

representative may represent the Advisory Committee in presentations to the Executive 

Committee and to outside entities. 

Section 3 

The first vice chair shall perform the duties of the chair in the absence of the chair. 

Section 4 

If the chair and the vice chair are each absent or unable to perform their duties, the second vice 

chair shall perform all duties of the chair.  Additionally, the second vice chair, with staff 

assistance, shall record and maintain attendance records and minutes. 

Section 5 

A member of the Central Texas Council of Governments staff, as assigned by the Executive 

Director, will serve as staff and administrative support for the Advisory Committee.  The Council 

staff shall archive minutes of all Advisory Committee meetings and shall perform such duties as 

may be required by the Executive Director or requested by the Advisory Committee. 

ARTICLE V 
MEETINGS 

Section 1 

This Advisory Committee shall comply with the Texas Open Meetings Act.  

Section 2 

The Advisory Committee shall meet once per quarter or at other times as the chairperson deems 

necessary or upon request of not less than one-third of the members of the Advisory Committee 

in accordance with notices provided by the Central Texas Council of Governments staff to each 

member and the area news media one week prior to a regular meeting.  Time and location of 

special meetings shall be announced as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act.  



Page 5 of 6 
SWAC Bylaws 
Revised August 2016 

 

Section 3 

All meetings of the Advisory Committee shall be open to the public.  A public comment period 

will be on the agenda for each meeting. 

Section 4 

A quorum at any Advisory Committee meeting shall be one-third of the voting membership.  An 

act of the majority of the members, in a meeting at which a quorum is present, shall be the act 

of the Advisory Committee. 

ARTICLE VI 
PARLIEMENTARY AUTHORITY 

Robert’s Rules of Order shall prevail as a guide for all meetings of parliamentary procedures with 

the exception that ex-officio members do not have voting rights. 

ARTICLE VIII 
AMENDMENTS TO BYLAWS 

The bylaws of the Advisory Committee shall be reviewed by the Advisory Committee after the 

election of new officers and may be altered, amended, or repealed as required by two-thirds vote 

of the Advisory Committee members present. 

ARTICLE IX 
CONFLICTS OF BYLAWS 

The by-laws of the Advisory Committee shall be subject to review by the Central Texas Council of 

Governments’ Executive Committee, and they shall not be in conflict with the CTCOG by-laws.  

Should a conflict arise, then the by-laws of the Central Texas Council of Governments shall prevail. 

  



Page 6 of 6 
SWAC Bylaws 
Revised August 2016 

GLOSSARY 

TCEQ – Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Solid Waste Industry Representative – A full-time employee of a business providing solid waste 

disposal or recycling services in the Central Texas area. 

Private Sector / Business Representative – A full-time employee of any business in the Central 

Texas area, providing services or producing products, but not necessarily directly connected to 

solid waste. 

Citizen Representative – Any interested or concerned individual who expresses a desire to serve 

on SWAC. 

Biennium – The two-year period of time for which SWAC is funded by TCEQ, begins on the first 

day of September on odd-numbered years and ending on the last day of August two years later.  

CTCOG - Central Texas Council of Governments. 

SWAC - Solid Waste Advisory Committee. 


